1967

In the Matter of the Estate of Dallas Bedford Lewis,  
Also Known as D. B. Lewis, Deceased. Lucille  
Parker, Jack Heldt and Robert Gaston v. Ernest L.  
Lewis : Appellant's Brief

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

This is a contest between executors appointed at the domicile and a brother of the decedent, a Utah resident, each seeking the probate in Utah of the foreign will of the decedent and the appointment of the contesting party as the representative of the estate for the purpose of conducting ancillary proceedings in the State of Utah.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

The lower Court admitted the will of the decedent to probate as a foreign will, denied the petition of the

executors who had been appointed as such at the domicile of the decedent and appointed the petitioning brother as administrator with the will annexed for the conduct of ancillary probate proceedings in the State of Utah.

### RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellants seek reversal of the order appointing respondent brother as administrator with the will annexed of the estate of the decedent and directing the lower Court to enter an order appointing appellants as executors under the will for the conduct of ancillary proceedings in the State of Utah.

### STATEMENT OF FACTS

The record on appeal here is somewhat confusing. It consists of three files, namely (a) the pleadings file, pages numbered 1 through 11, and 98 through 111, with Exhibits 1, 3 and 4 attached, here designated as "R."; (b) the so-called Original File, which is the copy of the will and the probate thereof authenticated by the California Court, pages numbered 12 through 97, here designated as "Of."; and (c) the Reporter's Transcript, pages numbered 1 through 130, here designated as "Tr." No substantial issue of fact is involved, the questions presented are essentially issues of law.

Dallas Bedford Lewis, herein termed the decedent died a resident of the State of California, on April 25, 1966, leaving an elaborate will dated December 7, 1965 which he had himself prepared. (Of. 13-33, Tr. 69)

Decedent was a successful business man engaged primarily in the operation of the Lewis Food Company. This company prepares and markets pet foods under the well-known name of "Dr. Ross Dog and Cat Food." (Of. 13-33) Decedent had other property holdings in California, Idaho, Oregon, Tennessee and Utah. (Tr. 4) The value of decedent's estate is in excess of \$5,000,000. (Of. 12, 89)

The will did not name any executors as such, but named appellants Lucille Parker, Jack Heidt and Robert Gaston to perform certain duties and enjoy certain powers in connection with the administration of decedent's estate and denominated these persons as "Trustees." (Of. 13-33)

On May 2, 1966, Lucille Parker filed a petition in the Superior Court of California for Los Angeles County, praying for the probate of the will, for interpretation of the same, for designation of executors thereunder, or in the alternative for issuance of letters of administration with the will annexed. On the following day Robert Gaston and Jack Heidt filed their petition for probate of the will. (Of. 87-88)

These petitions came on regularly to be heard before the California Court on May 25, 1966. Respondent Ernest L. Lewis, who is a brother of the decedent, received notice of such hearing, engaged an attorney and appeared in person and by attorney at the hearing. (Of. 87-89)



The California Court, upon hearing on the petition, entered an order dated May 25, 1966, that the decedent died testate on April 25, 1966, a resident of the State of California, leaving an estate therein, that the document dated December 7, 1965, be admitted to probate as the will of the decedent, that Lucille Parker, Robert Gaston and Jack Heidt were named as executors under the will appointing said persons as executors and ordering that letters testamentary be issued to them upon furnishing a corporate surety bond in the sum of five million dollars. (Of. 87-89)

On the same day, Parker, Gaston and Heidt, here under termed "executors" furnished a corporate surety bond in the sum of five million dollars (Of. 90) and letters testamentary were issued to them on May 26, 1966. (Of. 96)

The property interests of decedent in the State of Utah consist of rights with respect to some seventeen thousand acres of mining properties in Millard and Beaver Counties, Utah, together with a small plant located thereon and miscellaneous machinery, equipment and personal property used in connection with the operation of the plant and mining property. (R. 1)

The decedent acquired his interest in this property by reason of entering into a joint venture agreement with Thomas N. Neale and Sulphurdale Mining Company, a Nevada corporation, under date of March 23, 1961. Pursuant to the agreement, the property was to be operated under the joint venture name of "Sulphurdale"

phurdale Chemical Company." Decedent was the managing joint venturor and was to be in charge of all operations of the joint venture. In the event of the death of a joint venturor, his executor or administrator should carry on in his place and be subject to the obligations of the deceased joint venturor under the agreement. The interest of the decedent in the venture was 51%. (Exhibit 3 to R.)

Immediately following the death of the decedent, respondent Ernest L. Lewis was instrumental in causing the Lewis Food Company to exercise an option to purchase from Neale and Sulphurdale Mining Company for \$415,000 a 46.55% interest in the joint venture. Under this transaction, respondent obtained from the purchase price unknown to the executors, a payment of \$24,000. (Tr. 112)

The joint venture has never proved to be profitable. In order to keep this venture going, it was necessary for the decedent or the Food Company to pour in excess of \$600,000 into the venture. (Tr. 49) This was accomplished, prior to decedent's death, by creating an account into which the decedent or the Food Company deposited funds which were withdrawn and charged to the venture. Upon the death of the decedent, it was necessary to continue to pour money into the venture. The executors determined that this should be done by advancing money from the Food Company. Under this procedure there was advanced to the venture the sum of \$8,556 between April 28 and June 30, 1966. Included in these advances was salary to respondent which was

to be \$650 per month, with an expense allowance of \$200 per month, one-half of which was to come from the Food Company and the other half to be charged to the joint venture. (Tr. 36, 43)

Necessarily the only means of paying the cost of maintaining the joint venture property will be to continually advance money for such purposes which, until the property is sold, must come from the Food Company. This Company during the pendency of the probate proceedings is under the direction and control of the executors. The joint venture could, accordingly, be a substantial drain upon the funds of the estate. This the decedent recognized and accordingly made provision in his will that the Utah property should be sold for cash or traded for listed stocks within six months, if possible, and if not sold by the executors within six months, then the property should be sold at public auction by professional auctioneers identified in his will. (Will - page 1 Of. 13)

Under date of June 2, 1966, respondent Ernest L. Lewis filed in the District Court of Millard County Utah, a petition for the appointment of himself as an auxiliary administrator with the will annexed of the estate of the decedent. The petition alleged that decedent died leaving a will which was duly admitted to probate on May 25, 1966, as hereinabove set forth. The petitioner did not present with his petition a copy of the will and the probate thereof duly authenticated as required by the provisions of Section 75-3-23, U.C.A.

1953, but alleged that such production would be made at the hearing on his petition. (R. 1-3)

Respondent Ernest L. Lewis was in touch with the representatives of the estate and in close contact with the proceedings in California. On June 2, 1966, a conference was held between the executors and their counsel at which Ernest Lewis appeared with his attorney, who announced that Mr. Lewis had filed for ancillary letters of administration in the State of Utah. On the same day, consideration was given to the appointment of Utah counsel, the names of certain recommended attorneys were obtained, and on June 5, at the meeting of the executors, employment of Utah counsel was authorized. On June 8, attorneys for various executors came to Utah and employed Messrs. Crafts and Waddingham as counsel for the executors, who on June 9th prepared and transmitted objections to the petition of respondent and their own petition for the probate of the will of decedent as a foreign will and for the issuance to executors of letters testamentary. (Tr. 7-9) This was filed on June 14, 1966. (R. 4-11) Copy of the will and the probate thereof duly authenticated by the California Court was filed in support of the executors' petition. (Of. 12-96)

The two petitions came on for hearing before the lower Court on July 29, 1966. The lower Court made findings and conclusions that:

1. Ernest L. Lewis is a competent person to be named as administrator with will annexed

in this matter, and is in no way precluded from so serving.

2. Lucille Parker, Jack Heidt and Robert Gaston were named in the will as "trustees" but not as executors, and hence as non-residents of the state of Utah are incompetent to serve here.

3. However, it is immaterial whether they were named as "trustees" or executors in the will inasmuch as they did not petition this Court within the 30 days required by Section 75-3-4 U.C.A. 1953. Further they did not show good or any cause for the delay.

4. From the verified petition herein it appears the rental value of the real property in Utah approximates \$47,000 per year and the value of the personal property approximates \$9,000. There was no dispute as to such figures.

5. The will was in all respects executed as required by law, was admitted to probate in California on May 25, 1966 as appears from the exemplified copies of the will and the Court proceedings there which have been filed in this Court.

Pursuant to said findings and conclusions, the Court ordered that the will of the decedent be admitted to probate in Utah, that Ernest L. Lewis be appointed administrator with the will annexed, that the objections of Parker, Heidt and Gaston be overruled and denied and their petition for appointment of themselves as executors be denied. (R. 98-104)

## ARGUMENT

## POINT I.

## THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN HOLDING THAT APPELLANTS WERE NOT NAMED AS EXECUTORS UNDER THE WILL OF THE DECEDENT.

At the threshold of this argument we are confronted with the question of whether appellants are named executors under the will of the decedent. If they are not executors, they are disqualified from acting in these ancillary proceedings because they are nonresidents. If they are executors, their nonresidence does not disqualify them. *In re Love's Estate*, 75 Utah 342, 285 Pac. 299; *In re Raat's Estate*, 102 Utah 482, 132 P. 2d 136; *In re Howard's Estate*, 108 Utah 294, 159 P. 2d 586.

As shown by the foregoing statement of facts, the will of the decedent does not designate executors by that term. The decedent employs the term "trustees." This situation required judicial construction of the will to determine whether the persons named as trustees were in law executors under the will. This the California Court undertook to do pursuant to the petition of appellants. The California Court, upon a consideration of the provisions of the will hereinafter further considered, held that appellants were named as executors under the will and made the order for their appointment. (Of. 87-89) The Utah Court notwithstanding the judgment and determination theretofore made by the California Court at the domicile, held otherwise as hereinabove shown. In so doing, we submit the lower Court erred.

(a) The Order of the California Court Appointing Appellants as Executors Is Binding Upon Respondent and the Lower Court.

The Utah trial court as indicated herein admits the will of the decedent to probate on the record and order of the California Court. The lower Court, however, undertakes to fragment the order of the California Court and while admitting the will to probate, in effect strikes down the order of the California Court in appointing appellants as executors thereunder. This the Utah Court may not properly do.

As herein shown, respondent Ernest L. Lewis appeared in person and by attorney in the California proceedings in which that Court held that appellants were named as executors under the will and ordered their appointment. Respondent was accordingly a party to such proceedings and is bound thereby. He may not now bring those proceedings to the Utah Court as a basis for the admission here of the foreign will of the decedent and avoid a portion of the judgment of that Court pursuant to which appellants were appointed as executors under the will of the decedent.

The foregoing controlling principle is announced and fixed in this jurisdiction by the landmark case of *Barrette v. Whitney*, 36 Utah 574, 106 Pac. 522, 37 L.R.A. N.S. 368. The decision of *Barrette* establishes in this jurisdiction the proposition that where statutory notice has been given, all persons who are interested in the estate and in fact all the world are bound by all order or decrees duly entered. Not only was respondent

Ernest L. Lewis given notice of the proceedings held before the California Court but he appeared and participated therein. He is accordingly bound by those proceedings and cannot now object in ancillary proceedings in Utah, to the result obtained in the very proceedings in which he participated. If respondent were dissatisfied with the result reached in California, his remedy is by appeal in the California Courts. In order to test the soundness of the foregoing principle one need only consider for a moment the havoc which would result from a contrary rule. If the judgment of the California Court can be assailed in Utah it can be assailed in every other state in which the decedent held property. Moreover, if the appointment made by the lower Court were permitted to stand, respondent might very well seek refuge behind the Utah judgment and refuse to account to the executors upon the ground that their appointment in California was void. This demonstrates the necessity of having this question resolved at the domicile and if attacked there only by appeal in the courts of that state. He cannot in effect collaterally attack those proceedings by the ancillary proceedings in the State of Utah. The rule is stated in Bancroft, Probate Practice, 2nd Ed., Vol. 1, Section 40, as follows:

“Where statutory notice has been given, all who are interested in the estate, and, in fact, all the world, are bound by all orders or decrees duly entered. And such notice, where the statute so provides, may be constructive and need not be actual.” Citing numerous cases including California authorities and *Barrett v. Whitney, supra*.



Moreover, respondent Ernest L. Lewis is bound by the express provisions of Section 75-3-24, U.C.A. 1953, as follows:

75-3-24. Hearing and proof. — If on the hearing it appears upon the face of the record that the will has been proved, allowed and admitted to probate in any other state or territory of the United States, or in any foreign country, and that it was executed according to the law of the place in which the same was made, or in which the testator was at the time domiciled, or in conformity with the laws of this state, it must be admitted to probate and shall have the same force and effect as a will first admitted to probate in this state, and letters testamentary or of administration shall issue thereon.

The foregoing section is considered carefully in Bancroft, Probate Practice, 2nd Ed., Vol. 1, under Section 145, where the following rule is laid down:

Under the federal constitution and statutes governing the effect of judgments of one state upon proper proof in another, probate in any state must be considered as conclusive upon the courts of any other in respect of every matter in which it is conclusive in the state of original probate. The original probate is thus conclusive as to personalty everywhere upon all questions of due execution, fraud, undue influence, and other matters affecting the validity and formal sufficiency of the will as the last will of the particular decedent, save for such right to appeal, move to set aside, or contest after probate as may be given by such jurisdiction. And if the statute in another jurisdiction where the will is subsequently offered for probate as a foreign will provides that a will made out of

the state by one not domiciled therein is as valid when executed according to the law of the place in which it was made or in which the testator was domiciled at the time as if made in conformity with domestic law, such statute, interpreted in the light of the requirement of the federal constitution that full force and effect be given judgments from sister states, makes probate upon the record of probate in the other state conclusive as to sufficiency of the will as a muniment of title to domestic realty. The fact that a foreign will is subject, in the jurisdiction of its original probate, to attack or contest and to review on appeal does not militate against its conclusiveness in the jurisdiction of ancillary probate, unless and until such attack or appeal is made or taken in the original jurisdiction. Nor does such fact warrant like attack or review in the ancillary jurisdiction.

Specifically, the determination of the right to letters testamentary is conclusive upon all parties who were participants in and bound by the proceedings in which that determination was made. This rule is stated in Bancroft, Probate Practice, 2nd Ed., Vol. 2, Section 276, as follows :

The order granting letters adjudges of necessity the right of the person to whom they are granted to such letters.

It is accordingly clear that the determination of the California Court on the question as to whether appellants were named as executors under the will of the decedent and the order appointing them to this office is conclusive upon respondent and the lower Court here.

## (b) The Will Names Appellants as Executors.

Assuming *arguendo* that the Utah Court was not bound by the order of the California Court appointing appellants as executors, and that the Utah Court could examine the will *de novo* on this question can there be any serious doubt that the California Court was right in the determination which it made? We think not.

It appears that three sections of the Utah Code, 1953, are involved here. They are respectively Sections 74-2-2, 74-2-24 and 74-3-17, which provide as follows:

74-2-2. Intention to be ascertained from words of will. — In case of uncertainty arising upon the face of a will as to the application of any of its provisions, the testator's intention is to be ascertained from the words of the will, taking into view the circumstances under which it was made, exclusive of his oral declarations.

74-2-24. Imperfect descriptions to be corrected — Evidence admissible. — When, applying a will, it is found that there is an imperfect description, or that no person or property exactly answers the description, mistakes and omissions must be corrected, if the error appears from the context of the will or from extrinsic evidence; but evidence of the declarations of the testator as to his intentions cannot be received.

74-3-17. Although not named executor, one intended entitled to letters. — Where it appears by the terms of a will that it was the intention of the testator to commit the execution thereof and the administration of his estate to any person as executor, such person, although not named executor, is entitled to letters testamentary in

the same manner as if he had been named executor.

Of the foregoing Sections, 74-3-17 is controlling here. This Section is substantially the same as Section 402 of the California Code. Historically, of course, our probate code was largely taken from that of California, and the construction of the California Courts should be given considerable weight in construing the Utah Code provisions. *In re Raat's Estate, supra*. The question here is simply whether the named persons are charged with the performance of the duties of executors. That they are designated "trustees" is not material.

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