1967

In the Matter of the Estate of Dallas Bedford Lewis,
Also Known as D. B. Lewis, Deceased. Lucille
Parker, Jack Heldt and Robert Gaston v. Ernest L.
Lewis : Respondent's Brief

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE LOWER COURT PROPERLY RULED THAT APPELLANTS WERE NOT NAMED AS EXECUTORS IN THE WILL OF DECEDENT.

(a) The Order of The California Court Appointing Appellants as Executors Applies Only to the Portion of the Estate in California.

Appellants cite considerable authority tending to show that the order of a Court admitting a will to probate is binding on all persons having Notice of the proceeding and also must be given full faith and credit by other states. Utah has a statute to this effect. Respondent is in full agreement with the authorities cited.

However, to attempt to use this line of argument and the authorities cited to show that the appointment of executors of an estate in California is binding upon a Utah Court for ancillary administration of the estate in Utah is to display a surprising lack of understanding of the fundamental nature of administration proceedings. Administration proceedings are in rem, not in personam. *Barrette v. Whitney*, 36 Utah 574, 106 Pac. 522; *Bancroft, Probate Practice*, 2nd Ed., Vol. 1, Sec. 40. As proceedings in rem, they have effect on things, the things being the properties of an estate. And it is elementary that the Courts of any state have no jurisdiction over properties beyond their boundaries. *Bancroft, Probate Practice*, 2nd Ed., Vol. 4, Sec. 1227. For this reason, ancillary administration proceedings become necessary when a decedent owned property located in more than one state. But the ancillary administration proceeding is not a part of the domiciliary administration. *Bancroft, Probate Practice*, 2nd Ed., Vol. 4, Sec. 1222 states:

Ancillary administration is accordingly not to be regarded as subsidiary, but rather as an independent administration, limited in effect to property physically within the jurisdiction, and directed primarily to the protection of local creditors of the decedent.

Ordinarily there is not even privity between ancillary and domestic representatives.

This principle is elaborated in 21 American Jurisprudence 848 et seq.:

Although it has been said that an ancillary administrator is in some respects the deputy or agent of the domiciliary representative, it must be borne in mind that he receives his authority, not from the executor, but under a different law, that he administers the estate which comes to his hands under a different law from, and perhaps conflicting with the law of the domicile, and that he is not answerable for his conduct to the domiciliary representative. . . (A)lthough a domiciliary and ancillary representative are in privity with the decedent, there is no privity between themselves. . . It is an elementary principle that letters testamentary or of administration have no legal force or effect beyond the territorial limits of the state in which they are granted. . . (S)ince an ancillary administrator derives his authority from the laws of the state of his appointment, he is concerned with and has authority to collect the debts, receive the assets situated in the state where the administration is granted.

If the law were not as stated above, the sovereignty of the several states would be seriously infringed. Orders made by Courts of one state could have effects on property located in other states. But the law is that administration of an estate in California is subject to the California Courts and administration of an estate in Utah is exclusively within the jurisdiction of the Utah Courts. The only limitation on the complete sovereignty of the Courts of the

various states in probate proceedings is that a will which has been found to be valid in the state where it was executed must be recognized as valid in other states. This principle has been specifically enacted into law in this state in Section 75-3-24, U.C.A. 1953:

75-3-24. Hearing and Proof. - If on the hearing it appears on the face of the record that the will has been proved, allowed and admitted to probate in any other state or territory of the United States, or in any foreign country, and that it was executed according to the law of the place in which the same was made, or in which the testator was at the time domiciled, or in conformity with the laws of this state, it must be admitted to probate and shall have the same force and effect as a will first admitted to probate in this state, and letters testamentary or of administration shall issue thereon.

Beyond recognizing the probate of a will in another state or in a foreign country, the statute cited in no way indicates that any recognition is to be given to any further orders of the foreign Court with respect to the administration of the estate.

Respondent does not here collaterally attack the Order of the California Court. He is concerned only with the administration proceeding in Utah. This is a separate proceeding under jurisdiction of the Courts of a different sovereign state. The order of the lower Court in this state did not in effect strike down the order of the California Court. It had no effect on it. The executors appointed in California are still executors in California. But the lower Court in Utah properly determined that the administration of the portion of the estate located in Utah was within its jurisdiction and has proceeded accordingly.

(b) Utah Courts Must Determine Who Is Entitled to Administer an Estate in Utah.

Appellants cite several sections of the Utah Code to

show that the property of this estate should be deemed as personal property and therefore is controlled by the law of the domicile. Respondent does not disagree. But appellants' argument is not material to this case. In the first place, the matter now before the Court is not a determination about the disposition of property, real or personal, but a determination as to the selection of a personal representative of the estate. The law pertaining to a determination of this sort is succinctly stated in 33 Corpus Juris Secundum 923, Sec. 31:

The law of the place where the estate is to be administered, and not the law of the domicile of the decedent, governs in who is entitled to administer.

Even if the argument of appellants were material, the law of the domiciliary state is presumed to be the same as the law of this state unless proven otherwise. *In re Campbell's Estate*, 53 Utah 487, 173 Pac. 688. And no proof has been made that the law in California differs in any respect from the law in Utah. Moreover, this Court has already been confronted with the type of argument now propounded by appellants, in the case of *In Re Campbell's Estate, supra*, and its ruling ought to settle the issue:

The contention that the Courts of this state are precluded from construing the will because the Courts of California, where the domiciliary administration is had, may place a construction thereon different than given it by the Courts of this state, is wholly without merit. No authorities are cited, nor do we think any can be found, that support counsel's contention in that regard.

The general rule, as declared by practically all of the authorities on the subject, is that the law of the testator's domicile governs the construction of his will disposing of personalty, and that Courts exercising ancillary powers should be governed by this rule in construing wills, unless a construction

of the law of the testator's domicile contravenes the law of the state where the will is offered for probate . . . Furthermore, we have a statute declaratory of this general rule which is as follows:

(The Court cites the Section which is now Utah Code Annotated 1953, 74-3-21.)

It will be noticed that this section in plain and unmistakable terms provides that the "interpretation" of wills shall be governed, when relating to personal property, by the law of testator's domicile, and not, as counsel's argument seems to imply, by the interpretation given wills by the Courts of a sister state where the domiciliary administration is had.

While the interpretation of a will under these circumstances by the Courts of some other state should, and would, be given much weight by the Courts of this state, such interpretation nevertheless would not be binding.

After making the above statement of law, this Court proceeded to determine a matter involving personal property of an estate in which there was an ancillary administration in Utah and a domiciliary administration in California in direct contravention of a ruling already made by a California Court - - giving consideration to the *law* of California, but refusing to be bound by the decision of the California Court. Surely appellants' contention that the Utah Court in this case is bound by the Order of the California Court in the proceeding held there is not to be taken seriously.

(c) The Will Names No Executors.

Though it is preferable both for the protection of the citizens of a state where ancillary administration is had and for the benefit of the estate that a resident of the state of ancillary administration be appointed to administer the

estate, appellants correctly contend that where persons are named in a will as executors, their non-residence does not disqualify them for appointment in the State of Utah. On the other hand, if they are not named in the will as executors, their appointment is expressly prohibited by Section 75-4-4, U.C.A. 1953:

No person is competent or entitled to serve as administrator or administratrix who is either: . . .

(2) Not a bona fide resident of the state . . .

The foregoing section of the Utah Code should be applied in the light of: First, what will best serve and protect the citizens of Utah? and, second, what is best for the estate? It is the Utah Court's duty to determine whether or not the will named executors, and if there is a doubt, the doubt should be resolved in favor of having a personal representative on the spot in Utah, available to demands of creditors and persons having an interest in or claim upon the property which is situated in this state. This doctrine is set forth in 33 Corpus Juris Secundum 906, Sec. 22, as follows:

(I)t may be stated generally that the appointment of executors by construction or implication from the terms of the will should not be favored, but in doubtful cases administration with will annexed should be resorted to.

The will of this decedent names no executors. It names certain persons as "trustees", but it is not proper to infer from the will that the testator intended these persons to be executors. It was held in *Estate of Clary*, 98 Cal. 2d 524, 220 Pac. 2d 754 that:

Unless the Court can conclude from the words of the testator that the latter intended for his devisee to take charge of the estate, collect his assets, pay his debts, and perform the usual functions of an

executor, it is error to appoint such devisee.

A good deal of stretching and reading between the lines is necessary to conclude from this decedent's will that the appellants herein were intended to perform the functions of executors. Rather, the testator was obviously doing some relatively long range planning. Ineptly, but nevertheless quite certainly, the testator manifests his desire that his property be distributed to trustees of numerous trusts, charging the trustees to use the properties and monies placed in their custody to carry out various terms and wishes which were dictated into the will. Appellants have in their Brief quoted a paragraph from page 14 of the will in which trustees are named. It is appropriate that the succeeding two paragraphs of the will also be quoted and called to the attention of the Court:

Throughout this will I have instructed that Security First National Bank be used as Co-Trustee; however, my Trustees shall have the right to change banks to any other responsible bank as Co-Trustee should they for any reason feel that the Security First National Bank is not satisfactory due to too high fees or any other reasons, with or without cause. The head of the Trustees shall be Lucille Casso-Parker and the Trusteeship shall operate on a majority rule until such time as John Raymond Lewis, as specified heretofore, becomes of age and shall become chairman of the Trustees, and when he reaches age thirty the Trusteeship shall be disbanded and he shall become the sole authority with the above instructions in effect.

During the existence of this Trusteeship, the Trustees involved shall be paid a reasonable compensation for their efforts and time devoted to the execution and carrying out to the best of their ability the wishes that have been dictated into this will.
(Of. 33)

It is to be noted that Lucille Parker is apparently to

be replaced as a trustee by John Raymond Lewis, who is presently a young boy of about twelve years of age, when he becomes of age and that the trusteeship is to endure until he reaches the age of thirty years. The testator does not appear to be talking about the winding up of his affairs and the settlement and distribution of his estate, but rather about the carrying on of his business and using the earnings to carry out certain wishes which he expressed in the will. It is not likely that the testator intended his estate to remain in administration for a period of eighteen years.

Appellants cite several sections of the Utah Code pertaining to interpretation of wills. An additional section which is even more pertinent to this matter is Section 74-2-5, U.C.A. 1953:

74-2-5. All Parts To Be Harmonized, If Possible. All the parts of a will are to be construed in relation to each other, and, if possible, so as to form one consistent whole; but where several parts are absolutely irreconcilable, the latter must prevail.

The paragraphs from the will quoted above are the last paragraphs in the will in which the words trustee and trusteeship are used. It is very clear in these paragraphs that the testator was speaking of a trusteeship and not of the administration of his estate. If earlier references to trustees in the will are inconsistent with the references in these paragraphs, the references in these paragraphs should prevail.

Since, to say the least, there is great doubt that the testator intended to appoint the appellants herein as the executors of his Last Will and Testament, the finding and conclusion of the lower Court that no executors were named in the will is proper.

POINT II.

THE LOWER COURT HAD THE RIGHT TO USE ITS DISCRETION IN THE APPOINTMENT OF THE REPRESENTATIVE OF THE ESTATE IN UTAH.

- (a) Appellants Failed to File Their Petition for Letters Testamentary Within the Time Limit Allowed by Utah Law.

Even if the appellants had been named as executors in the will, a Utah Court is not obligated to appoint them to administer the portion of this estate located in Utah. Section 75-3-4, U.C.A. 1953, provides:

If the person named in a will as executor, for thirty days after he has knowledge of the death of the testator and that he is named as executor, fails to petition for the probate of the will and for letters testamentary, he may be held to have renounced his rights to letters, and the Court may appoint any other competent person administrator, unless good cause for the delay is shown.

This Section of the Code has been applied in the case of *In re Love's Estate*, 75 Utah 342, 353, 285 Pac 299:

It may be conceded that, where the petition by the party named as executor is filed in time, the Court has no discretion but to appoint the party named executor unless he is disqualified by statute, but this Court has already committed itself to the doctrine that failure to make timely application for letters testamentary leaves it in the discretion of the Court whether he appoints the person having the preferential right or some other competent person.

Appellants contend that the holding of *In re Love's Estate, supra*, is not pertinent in the case of an ancillary administration. But it is submitted that appellants contention is incorrect. *Bancroft, Probate Practice*, 2nd Ed., Vol. 4, Sec. 1228, states:

But statutes declaring that one named as executor renounces his preference right to letters if he fails to apply therefor within a specified number of days after he has knowledge of the death of the testator and that he is named as executor, apply in ancillary as well as domiciliary administration.

The Supreme Court of Wyoming in holding that a section of the Wyoming law similar to the section of Utah law cited applies to a foreign as well as a domestic will and that preference is lost by delay, commented that the object of the statute is to secure prompt settlement of estates. That Court held that after expiration of the thirty day period, who is to be appointed to administer the estate becomes a matter for the *sound discretion* of the Court. *Rice v. Tilton*, 80 Pac. 828. The purpose of the thirty day limitation is, of course, for the protection of the estate and the persons having claims against or rights under the estate. These persons ought not to be required to submit to lack of diligence on the part of the persons named in the will.

(b) Appellants Failed to Show Good Cause For Their Delay in Filing Probate Proceedings in Utah.

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